
PLEADING 
 

Extraordinary Release of New and Material Evidence: Federal False Statements (18 U.S. Code § 1001) 
 
 
April 14, 2019 
 
The Honorable Monique Binswanger 
Administrative Judge 
Merit System Protection Board 
Washington, D.C.  
 
Dear Judge Binswanger,  
 
 

Thank you for your Order closing the record on jurisdiction of April 8, 2019.  Last Friday, April 12th, following promises made by Presidents Barack 

Obama and Donald Trump, the United States handed thousands of documents over to Argentine authorities on the so-called dirty “war” in which 

thousands were killed. The declassification, said President Trump, “demonstrates our shared commitment to promoting open and transparent 

government.” 

 
This commitment, Your Honor, goes directly to my request that charges be brought against Opposing Counsel based the many federal false statements 

they have made before this Court. I do not expect nor do I suggest that it affect in any way your ultimate decision on jurisdiction. Rather, in your capacity 

as an Officer of the Court, in upholding the law I believe that, particularly given the material on gross violations of international law ordered released by 

President Trump, the conduct of Opposing Court needs to be understood as illegal and well as shameless.  

 

In their March 28, 2019 Pleading, “Response to Agency Response to Order to Show Cause – Jurisdiction (Settlement Agreement) dated 3/6/2019,” 
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Opposing Counsel affirms on Page 1, that my supposedly “odd and inappropriate behavior” was allegedly evidenced by “emails [I] sent that were 

conspiratorial, derogatory, and offensive toward Agency staff.” 

On Page 2, they go on to say that I engaged in “months of increasingly odd and divisive behavior, numerous interpersonal conflicts and office disputes, 

inappropriate emails, and threatening workplace behavior,” “behav(ing) inappropriately … after being told to utilize appropriate USG channels to report wrongdoing.”  

At the bottom of Page 3, they claimed that I had promoted “damaging conspiratorial theories of wrongdoing by the agency.” At the bottom of Page 8, they said I had 

engaged in a “public smear campaign;” that without “providing any substantiation … [I] failed to establish that circumstances permitted [me] no alternative, 

my “unfocused complaints and allegations” offered to Your Court “in a vein similar to the incendiary and often personally offensive criticism that [I] shared widely 

in 2011.” (Italics added.) 

Given your April 8th Order, again I do not expect Your Honor to include the following in the deliberations about jurisdiction. In fact, as of last week in 

recognition that my disclosures involved violations of international law (“crimes against humanity”), I have reached out to the High Commissioner for Human 

Rights for help on the disclosures per se. That said, I will now explain what the new and material evidence in the last tranche of Argentine dirty “war” 

declassification means regarding ongoing violations by Opposing Counsel of 18 U.S. Code § 1001.   

 Your Honor, a linchpin of my complaints about Opposing Counsel has to do with the fact that, until a near-fatal car crash, I had endlessly and almost 

always fruitlessly sought to use “appropriate” legal channels to make disclosures of gross wrongdoing. Overwhelming evidence to that effect is contained 

in my many Pleadings before this court. The law on whistleblowing is clear, however; accused violators of law do not get to decide what channels are 

appropriate and which are not; particularly when they control the former—as they did at the National Defense University.  

Which goes to the question of the type of character assassination employed in their March 28, 2019 Pleading, using false statements, which is inherent in 

terms like conspiratorial, derogatory, and offensive; damaging conspiratorial theories of wrongdoing, and incendiary and often personally offensive criticism. This is particularly so 
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when hurled against someone who has made three Congressional Disclosures through the Intelligence Community Office of the Inspector General, and 

who was temporarily handicapped after having to suffer through two separate brain surgeries. 

In the Friday declassification were included numerous documents the information about which I had used in disclosures about those at the National 

Defense University and U.S. Southern Command who either were guilty of crimes against humanity or who knowingly violated rule, regulation and/or law 

in promoting those who had engaged in gross and illegal violations of human rights, using Department of Defense resources.  

Without going into too much detail, during the infamous Argentine dirty “war” illegal repression was coordinated through the Argentine Army 601 

Intelligence Battalion led by Col. Alberto Valin.  

As a journalist and historian, I had the unique privilege of receiving two rather extensive communications from the FBI legal attaché in Buenos Aires 

during that time, human rights hero Robert W. Scherrer.  Part of the exclusive revelations Scherrer gave to me in those documents (Nos. 1 and 2, attached) 

and in an interview at the Bureau headquarters in Washington, was the fact that in addition to his role in carrying out a massive campaign of disappearing 

people off the streets, torturing them, then burying their bodies in mass graves, Valin was the person who “turned” into a double agent Mario Firmenich, 

the head of the Montoneros, a leftwing group described at the time as “the largest urban terrorist organization in Latin America.” Valin, Scherrer told me 

(which I reported in my first book, Dossier Secreto, and as a journalist), also turned others of Firmenich’s group into intelligence assets. The dirty warrior in 

fact actually used the Montonero leader to track down the head of Argentina’s other most important guerrilla organization and kill him.  
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On the workings of the 601 Intelligence Battalion … 

(http://www.telam.com.ar/notas/201401/46652-avanzan-las-obras-en-el-edificio-del-batallon-601-donde-persiste-la-memoria.html	
	
https://www.icj.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/Sentencia-TribunalPenal-Argentina-Dec06.pdf	)	
 

Following last Friday’s declassification, I went through many of the documents and found that Scherrer’s story as he told it to me was ratified by two very 

important and incontrovertible facts: 1) that Valin was unquestionably the American Embassy’s most useful informant, and 2) that—as Scherrer told me 

more than three decades ago—several “penetration sources” inside the Montoneros were providing what Scherrer said was extremely valuable information. 

(Please see attachment No. 2 as just one example.) 

 

Why is this important with regard to questions about the intent of Opposing Counsel?   

Knowing what I knew, I loyally sought to make sure that my bosses were fully aware that at least one (and more likely, two, given that the other was 
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Firmenich’s former aide de camp and now a wealth arms trafficker to boot) of those being promoted by them at National Defense University were 

members of the illegal 601 intelligence unit—responsible for the torture, murder and clandestine disposal of thousands.  In fact, in 2013 (a year after I left 

NDU), 601 death squad task force leader Julio Cirinio was convicted in an Argentine civilian court for delitos de lesa humanidad—crimes against humanity. 
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When I tried to put an end to Cirino’s several appearances at NDU events (about which I had questioned from the beginning), as you can see, even though 

theirs was against rule, regulation and/or law, the “guidance from leadership was that he was valuable anyway.” 

As you can also see from Attachment No. 3, the same thing happened when I tried to end a less-than-arms-length with Firmenich’s aide, Mario Montoto.  

(In Attachment No. 3, Col. (ret.) Robert Olson, a long-time military attaché in Buenos Aires, actually knowingly joked about it.) 

And as you will remember, the William Perry Center for Hemispheric Defense Studies also continued to employ at NDU, Jaime Garcia Covarrubias, a 
former senior staff member of what the CIA called an international terrorist organization, despite my many efforts to go through “appropriate USG 
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channels,” which they then tried to ban in the Settlement Agreement. Kept on staff far longer that I was—he being credibly accused of torture and murder; 
me of having sent out some angry but not obscene emails about this and other unending gross misconduct), Garcia Covarrubias was later indicted for his 

alleged role in the sexual abuse, torture and murder of seven unarmed detainees who he and his bosses claimed were killed in an “armed clash.” 

Your Honor, what are clearly conspiratorial, damaging conspiratorial theories, a public smear campaign, as well as incendiary and often personally offensive criticism, is 
Opposition Counsel’s attempt to defame and slander me in Your Court, for the purposes of seeking to avoid facing their own day of judgment for clear 

and ongoing violations of 18 U.S. Code § 1001. I know you will not be fooled, as I am sure you also share what President Trump referred to as a “shared 

commitment to promoting open and transparent government.” 

I remain, 

Very Respectfully, 

 
Martin Edwin Andersen 

 

Cc:        United Nations High Commissioner Michele Bachelet 

Naval Office of the Inspector General 

          Federal Bureau of Investigation 

          Intelligence Community Office of the Inspector General 

Former Counsel Thomas Devine 


